ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
ADM NI STRATI VE REGULATI ON REVI EW COWM TTEE
March 20, 2012
1:32 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Representative Kurt A son, Vice Chair
Senat or Thomas WAgoner

Senator Bill W el echowski
Representative Chris Tuck

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PROPOSED CHANGES in 12 AAC 56. 115 - PLEASURE CRAFT EXEMPTI ONS
- HEARD

PROPOCSED CHANGES in 7 AAC 70.110 - ADD Tl ONAL REQUI REMENTS FOR
PROVI DI NG ALCOHOL AND DRUG DETOXI FI CATI ON SERVI CES

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

Department of Commerce, Comunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent and
Chair, Board of Marine Pilots

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to the
regul ati on changes in 12 AAC 56. 115.

CARTER WHALEN, President

Al aska Marine Pilots

Dut ch Har bor, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Raised questions regarding the regulation
changes in 12 AAC 56. 115.

ARR COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2012



CAPTAI N ROBERT W NTER, Marine Pil ot

Sout heast Al aska Pilots Association

Ket chi kan, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Questioned the regulation changes in 12 AAC
56. 115.

TERI KEKLAK, Manager

Program Integrity and Medicaid Services

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information regarding 7 ACC 70.110.

PAUL FI NCH, PA representing hinself

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of changing 7 ACC
70.110 to authorize physician assistants to supervise nurses.

ROBERT R THOVAS, PA representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of changing 7 ACC
70.110 to authorize physician assistants to supervi se nurses.

JON SHERWOOD, Medi cal Assistance Admi nistrator

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information regarding 7 ACC 70. 110.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:35 PM
CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Adm nistrative Regul ation Revi ew
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Representatives Tuck and dson and Senators
W el echowski and Chair French. Senator Wagoner arrived soon
t hereafter.

Proposed Changes in 12 AAC 56.115 - Pleasure Craft Exenptions

1:33: 08 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the first order of business would be
consideration of the proposed changes to 12 AAC 56.115 by the
Board of Marine Pilots.

SENATOR WAGONER j oi ned the comm ttee.

1: 34: 02 PM

ARR COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Thayer to sunmarize the actions the Board
of Marine Pilots recently took wth regard to regulations
dealing with marine pilots and foreign pleasure craft.

CURTIS THAYER, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Conmmerce,
Community and Econom c¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) Commerce and Chair,
Board of Marine Pilots, reviewed the conposition of the seven
menber board and clarified that he was speaking as a board
menber only.

1: 35:34 PM

MR. THAYER di scussed the governor's request for departments to
review regulations with the idea of becomng nore business
friendly, and the Division of Corporations, Business and
Prof essi onal Licensing decision to introduce four anendnents to
12 AAC 56.115 during the Novenber 9, 2011 neeting of the Board
of Marine Pilots.

He explained that the first anmendnment, 12 AAC 56.115(a)(3)(H

revises how the division addresses applications for pilotage
exenptions for foreign pleasure craft. Under current statute a
foreign pleasure craft wunder 175 feet that wants a pilotage
exenption has to first get a certificate of financial
responsibility (COFR) from the Departnent of Environnenta

Conservation (DEC) and then submt the application through the
marine pilot coordinator. The proposed change allows the
applications to be submtted sinultaneously. Nothing in the
application or requirenments was changed, and the Board of Marine
Pilots still has the final say on granting the exenption.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the country of flagging has any bearing on
t he board's deci sion-naki ng process for granting exenptions.

MR. THAYER said no. Responding to further questions, he
clarified that the regulation applies to vessels whose keel was
laid in some country other than the United States.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if nobst of these vessels were owned by U S
citizens.

MR. THAYER confirmed that nany are U. S. owned.
CHAI R FRENCH asked how many exenptions are granted each sunmer.

MR. THAYER replied the nunber fluctuates but on average, the
nunber is 20.

ARR COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2012



1:42:56 PM
REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked how long it takes to get an exenption
under the current process.

MR. THAYER replied it can take up to two weeks.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON conmented that the tinme-savings would be
meani ngl ess to vessels that plan their itineraries a year or two
i n advance.

MR. THAYER responded that a delay of a week or two can be very
nmeani ngful to smaller yachts that do not nake plans well in
advance. He noted that there had been instances where owners
were unaware of the requirenents and arrived in Ketchikan
wi t hout havi ng gone through the process.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked what it would cost for a 175 foot
vessel to spend two nonths in Al aska waters.

MR. THAYER replied he would have to follow up wth the exact
nunbers but the cost is based on the length overall (LOA) of the
vessel. He noted that the board also addressed a regulation
about how to determ ne vessel |ength.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON questioned whether it mght not be nore
efficient to structure the fee schedule to accommopdate | ast-
m nute applications. He opined that doubling the fee on a multi-
mllion dollar vessel would not discourage the owner from making
the trip.

MR. THAYER said that was not contenplated in the regulations
that were passed by the board.

1:46: 14 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked how many vessels apply for an exenption
every year and the average | ength of stay.

MR. THAYER replied about 20 yachts receive exenptions and sone
stay all sunmer.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if any agency supervised or controlled the
anount of fish these yachts take from Al aska waters.

MR. THAYER responded that was outside the purview of the Board

of Marine Pilots, but fish and wldlife regulations were
provided in the application package.

ARR COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2012



1:48:30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked what reasons would cause DEC to deny
an exenption for a small vessel.

MR. THAYER replied there probably were none; the certificate of
financial responsibility (COFR) is required by the Coast Cuard
and nost vessels carry one automatically.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked what reasons would cause the board to
di sapprove an exenpti on.

MR. THAYER replied there are numerous reasons, but very few are
actually rejected. He explained that consideration is given to
past violations, qualifications of +the crew, experience in
Al aska waters, type of vessel, and insurance. He noted that
charter vessels were never exenpted.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if there was a difference between an
over 175 foot private vessel, commercial vessel, and charter
vessel

MR. THAYER clarified that the exenption applies only to foreign
hull ed vessels that are less than 175 feet in length, and that
charter and commercial vessels do not qualify for a pilotage
exenpti on.

1:51:13 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many passengers are typically on
board t hese vessel s.

MR. THAYER estinmated that a 150 foot yacht would probably have
6- 10 guests and a professional crew of 3-5.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the <crews were trained or
qualified marine pilots.

MR. THAYER replied they all have certifications and nerchant
mari ne |icenses.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if prior know edge of Alaska waters
i's required.

MR. THAYER said no, but nost of the people applying for an

exenption have been in Al aska waters at some tinme in their
career.

ARR COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if, for exanple, soneone who cruised
in Southeast 20 years ago would be eligible to cruise in the
VWhittier area.

MR. THAYER said yes, if the board granted an exenpti on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nmuch fuel these vessels typically
carry.

MR. THAYER estimated the capacity to be up to 5,000 gallons for
the vessel plus 50-60 gallons for a tender.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there was specific data as to the
expected econonmic gain fromthese regul atory changes.

1: 52: 58 PM
MR THAYER sai d no.

1:53: 24 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he thought it would it be safer if
t hese yachts had an Al aska marine pil ot aboard.

MR. THAYER replied he follows the statutes, which stipulate that
any vessel wunder 175 feet can apply for an exenption and any
vessel larger than 175 feet requires a marine pilot.

SENATOR WAGONER highlighted his marine experience and opined
that certification and |icensure doesn't necessarily nean a
person is a good marine pilot and can navi gate.

MR. THAYER responded that the only incident |ast year that he
was aware of was a 100 foot vessel that ran aground while on
anchor. It was not a foreign vessel so the board had no
jurisdiction over it.

1:55:50 PM

MR. THAYER revi ewed the second anendnent, a new paragraph 12 AAC
56. 115(a)(4) that stipulates that a copy of the vessel registry
will be submtted to the marine pilot coordinator with the
exenption application. He explained that this standard docunent
gives the length overall of the vessel and that that nunber is
used to calculate tariffs and fees. The board passed this change
6:1.

The third change anmends 12 AAC 56.115(b) and reaffirns the

state's right to inpose a fine of up to $10,000 per episode on
pl easure craft in conpulsory pilotage waters without either a

ARR COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2012



pilot or an exenption. As a side note, he highlighted that
i nvestigation costs are borne by the board, but the fines go to
the general fund. This drives up costs for the |licensees.

1:59: 15 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked about the relative economc inpact of a fine
versus the charges recouped for pilotage services. He asked if
each day is a separate violation, and specifically how the fine
for a vessel in violation on a continuous 30-day trip conpares
to the cost to hire a pilot for that sane peri od.

MR. THAYER deferred the latter question to a pilot explaining
that the tariffs are negotiated between the pilot association
and vessel agents.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that it was a civil fine and that the
statute would be construed against the governnent in favor of
the person paying the fine. He opined that unless a specific
provi sion defines each day as a separate violation, the 30-day
trip would be just one violation.

MR. THAYER revi ewed AS 08.62.190. Penalties, and noted that the
fine can be as high as $30,000 on the second offense.

CHAIR FRENCH rem nded M. Thayer that he didn't address whether
each day is a separate violation

MR. THAYER offered to follow wup after he consulted the
Department of Law (DQL).

CHAI R FRENCH observed that |egislative counsel, Terri Lauterbach
was directing M. Thayer to a provision that m ght shed |ight on
t he questi on.

MR. THAYER cited AS 08.62.040(f) that says, "Each entry into
state water in violation of this chapter or AS 08.62.180(b) is a
separate violation."

CHAIR FRENCH posed the exanple of a vessel that enters state
wat ers at Ketchi kan and exits 30 days |ater at Kachemak Bay, and
reiterated his opinion that it wll be construed against the
departnment to be one violation unless the statute specifically
says that each day is a separate violation. He agreed that the
fine for a second violation would be $30,000 and questi oned why
there should be an opportunity for a second violation.

ARR COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2012



MR. THAYER responded that the Marine Pilot Association can stil
charge the vessel for services not rendered so the vessel owner
woul d pay that in addition to the fine.

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that the state was surrendering that
option by elimnating that aspect of the regul ation.

MR. THAYER offered his belief that the Marine Pilot Association
retains the ability to charge for services not rendered.

CHAI R FRENCH agreed the association can assess a charge, but the
regul atory change allows a vessel to get an exenption not having
paid. The deleted |anguage says the vessel cannot return unti

t he appropriate charges have been paid.

MR. THAYER said he assunes in that circunstance that the board
woul d di scuss the unpaid charges and deny the exenpti on.

CHAIR FRENCH turned the discussion to safety wth the
observation that that was why the |egislature asked for marine
pilots in the first place.

2:04:42 PM

SENATOR WAGONER stated that it did not matter whether the vessel
had a foreign bottomor a U S. bottom The issue was safety on
the water and that was what the conm ttee should be addressing.

2:05:15 PM

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON referred to the anmendment to 12 AAC
56.115(c) and asked the intent of renmoving the requirenent that
the vessel master hold a wvalid wunlimted radar observer
endor senent .

CHAI R FRENCH noted that question was in reference to the |ast
regul ati on change the comm ttee woul d address.

MR. THAYER read the regulation and explained that the board
voted unaninously to table that anmendnent and send it to a
subconm ttee. Final action was not taken on that regul ation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI questi oned whet her any thought was given to
putting the Board of Marine Pilots under either the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) or the
Departnent of Environnmental Conservation (DEC) instead of the
Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
( DCCED .

ARR COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2012



MR. THAYER replied he was unaware of any such discussion. He
then pointed out that the Division of Corporations, Business and
Prof essional Licensing regulates 40 professional |icenses, half
of which have a board like the marine pilots so it appropriately
fits within commerce. He estimated that foreign pleasure craft
regul ations were probably five percent of the board' s work. He
listed the other duties, and opined that if Al aska had
regul ations and policies in place that encouraged pleasure craft
to cone to Alaska it would clearly help the small conmmunities in
Sout heast. Al so, when nore large and snall yachts cone to Al aska
there's nore business for marine pilots and vessel agents. It's
about comerce and the board wants to do what it can to
streanline welcomng people to Alaska. He noted that the board
voted 5:1 on these regul ations.

2:10: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK commented that Carnival Cruise Line found
that commerce was affected when people did not have a sense of
security. The conpany saw a significant drop in earnings after
the recent [ Costa Concordi a] di saster, illustrating the
i nportance of maintaining the highest standards of safety.

MR. THAYER enphasi zed that these regulatory changes streamine
the process, but the requirenents were the sanme and did not
af fect safety.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the anendnent to 12 AAC 56.115(b)
didn't make it easier for foreign vessels to operate wthout
marine pilots.

MR. THAYER offered his belief that streamining the process did
not change the requirenents. The sanme information is required
and the application goes through the sanme approval process.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the dollar anount of the penalty for
a violation under subsection (b). He read the deleted |anguage,
"and (2) pays the appropriate charges for pilotage services in
accordance with 12 AAC 56. 205(a), (b),(c), or (d)."

MR. THAYER responded that refers to a private action between the
pil ot association and the owner of the pleasure craft, although
the Board of Marine Pilots retains the ability to receive that
paynent. He interpreted the change as reinforcing the state's
right to fine, sonmething it had not been doing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI questioned the w sdom of renoving the
| anguage in paragraph (2).

ARR COW TTEE - 9- March 20, 2012



MR. THAYER expl ained that the deleted |anguage put the state in
the position of forcing a third-party action. It referred to
charges the vessel owner may owe the pilot association, not the
state. He reiterated that the state retains the ability to fine
the owner of the pleasure craft, and this clarifies that there
may be two actions.

CHAIR FRENCH offered his view for redrafting the regulation to
elimnate the opportunity for a future exenption.

(b) If a pleasure craft of foreign registry of nore
than 125 feet overall length enters conpul sory
pilotage waters wthout a pilot or a pilotage
exenption under AS 08.62.180 (b) - (e), the operator
of the pleasure craft will not be granted a subsequent
pi | ot age exenpti on.

He continued that the board believes it is reaffirmng the
state's right to assess fines, but to actually provide a nethod
for doing so he would suggest replacing the deleted |anguage
about pilotage services in paragraph (2) with the phrase "and
paid the fine under AS 08.62.040(f)." That subsection talks
about the fines the state can assess.

2:14:18 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI commented on the difficulty of filing suit
to recover pilot fees when the organization is based in a
f orei gn conpany.

MR. THAYER responded that it would be difficult with or wthout
the changes to the regulations. He added that the authority was
retained in statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked for the statutory reference.

CHAI R FRENCH said the conmttee would hear testinony from marine
pilots while M. Thayer | ooked for the reference.

2:15: 53 PM

CARTER WHALEN, President, Alaska Mirine Pilots, Dutch Harbor,
AK, discussed the reasons that regulations regarding nmarine
pilots were critical to the Al aska econony and environnent. He
cited the Costa Concordia disaster to enphasize the inportance
of the Alaska laws regarding marine pilots in maintaining safety
and preventing marine accidents. \Wen passengers aren't sure of
safe navigation through dangerous waters, they won't sail, and

ARR COW TTEE -10- March 20, 2012



any large vessel plying Al askan waters, including foreign
pl easure craft over 65 feet, is a potential oil spill if it runs
aground.

MR. WHALEN said he finds it troubling that the board tasked with
enforcing Al aska's system of pi | ot age appears to be
accomodating industries' desire to weaken the system DCCED
recently offered four anendnents that weaken marine pilotage
regul ations to the Board of Marine Pilots, and three passed. In
each case the logic was to streamine the exenption process in
order to stinulate economc development from the foreign
pl easure craft market. However, no econom c data was offered for
t he board to consider.

MR  WHALEN cited the anendnent to 12 AAC 56.115(b) as
particularly perplexing. The |aw was broken yet the process to
get an exenption was expedited absent the only neasure designed
to keep foreign yachts from violating the law in the first
pl ace. He suggested that if the board is concerned about the
pil ot association being conpensated for the avoided service

fees, it should have anended the |anguage to include a daily
penalty equal to the cost of hiring a state-licensed marine
pilot. Now all a foreign yacht has to do for next year's

exenption is to provide satisfactory docunentation detailing the
vessel's entry and voyages in violation. Regulations and
penalties sufficient to serve as a deterrent no |onger protect
the state's interest. He reconfirmed his opposition to the
regul ation changes and concluded that Alaska and protecting
Al aska's econony and environnent should cone first, and foreign
pl easure craft owners should come second.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if he agrees that a foreign pleasure
craft operator can get an exenption wthout having settled his
or her obligations.

MR. VWAYLEN said that's correct. The board passed the anmendnents
expeditiously with logic that doesn't hold water. The third
change was a particularly good exanple of that.

2:27: 43 PM

CAPTAIN ROBERT WNTER, marine pilot, Southeast Al aska Pilots
Associ ation, said he has piloted vessels in Alaska for nore than
20 years, is a retired U S. Coast Guard officer, and has served
on the Board of Marine Pilots foreign yacht conmittee since its
inception in 2003. He stated that when the Board of Marine
Pilots considered four anmendnents to the regulations for foreign
pl easure yachts, an overwhelm ng mgjority of the comments were

ARR COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2012



agai nst these changes. (Qpposing conments canme from marine
pilots, the former chair of the Board of Marine Pilots, forner
public nenbers of the board, general counsel for the Anerican
Pilots Association, the U S Coast Guard, and several nenbers of
the public yet the board overwhel m ngly passed each proposal.

He agreed wth other statenments that the pilots' primary
interest in the issue is safety. He confirned that pilots
generate little inconme from these vessels because they are
| argely exenpt from needing a pilot. Vessel agents are the only
entity that stands to gain from slacking the requirenents
because exenpt yachts are required to hire an agent. He
continued to say that getting the word out that Alaska is open
for business is well and good as long as the state is protected.
The Alaska Pilot Act requires pilots to be available for
di spatch 24/7, 365 days a year and the expense of having a pil ot
avai l able is ongoing. Those costs don't go away when a vessel
that is required to enploy a pilot fails to do so. He cited a
recent exanple of a foreign pleasure craft that received an
exenption and spent nost of its time in Al aska operating as a
charter vessel. Wen the operator was caught and fined, the
vessel left state waters and the fine and charges went unpaid.
He concluded by saying that Al aska has one of the weakest yacht
requirenents in the nation and he hopes it doesn't turn into
Rodney Dangerfield s Caddyshack.

2:32:41 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the commttee could look forward to
receiving witten conments from Terri Lauterbach. He asked M.
Thayer if he had any concl udi ng conments.

MR. THAYER recapped the public process for review ng proposed
regul ati on changes, and said it would be hel pful going forward
if the pilots and their attorneys offer suggestions to inprove
the process. These regul ations were considered for over 90 days
and not one attorney from the pilot association stepped forward
to offer comrent.

2:35:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked what entity suggested the regulation
changes.

MR. THAYER replied the Division of Corporations, Business and
Prof essi onal Licensing asked for them based on instances of past
issues. He reiterated the intent was to streanmline the process
wi t hout dunbi ng down the regul ati ons.

ARR COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2012



Proposed Changes in 7 AAC 70.110 - Additional Requirenents for
Provi di ng Al cohol and Drug Detoxification Services

2: 36: 38 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the second natter before the conmmttee
relates to physician assistants and additional requirenents for
provi ding al cohol and drug detoxification services under 7 AAC
70.110. He asked Ms. Keklak to give the commttee an overvi ew of
the recent regul atory changes.

2:36: 54 PM

TERI KEKLAK, Manager, Program Integrity and Medicaid Services,
D vision of Behavioral Health, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), Anchorage, AK, explained that the Behavioral
Health regulations outlined in 7 AAC 70.010-70.990 generally
outline DHSS s responsibilities wunder AS 47.30.520-620 the
Community Mental Health Services Act, and AS 47.37 the Uniform
Al coholism and Intoxication Treatnment Act. Specifically, AS
47.37.140 grants DHSS the responsibility for determning
standards in treatnent facilities.

The Behavioral Health regulations in 7 AAC 70.110 define the
requirenents for providing services in detox facilities,
including staffing requirenments. The regulations were drafted to
ensure that professional workers practice within the scope of
practice defined by their professional I|icensing statutes and
regul ati ons. AS 08. 68. 265 expressly excl udes physi ci an
assistants as a category of professional who <can oversee
licensed practical nurses. Therefore, 7 AAC 70.110(d)(3)(E)
l[imts the supervision of licensed practical nurses (LPN) to
physi ci ans and advanced nurse practitioners.

AS 08.64.107 grants the Board of Medicine the authority to adopt
regul ations regarding |icensure of physician assistants, and the
regul ati ons under 12 AAC 40.410 require a physician assistant to
practice under a collaborative relationship with a |licensed
physi ci an. The Behavioral Health regul ations under 7 AAC 70.110
were drafted to ensure that they did not allow practice outside
of the professional authorities.

M5. KEKLAK relayed that DHSS was consulting with the Al aska
Medical Board to clarify whether or not the collaborative
relationship includes RN supervision. Depending on the outcone
of t hat consul tati on, DHSS will amend its regulations
accordi ngly.

ARR COW TTEE -13- March 20, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if the collaborative agreenent is any
different for a PA working in a certified detoxification
facility conpared to any other nedical facility.

M5. KEKLAK explained that the collaborative agreement does not
speak to the type of facility; it is an agreenment with a
licensed physician that defines the scope of practice and
service that the PA can provide.

CHAIR FRENCH inforned the conmttee that Melissa Stone, the
director of the Division of Behavioral Health, and Jon Sherwood,
t he nedi cal assistance adnministrator for DHSS, were available to
answer questions.

2:42: 45 PM

PAUL FINCH, representing hinself, said he works as a physician
assistant at Gateway to Recovery Detox Center in Fairbanks, AK
He testified in support of authorizing PAs to supervise RNs and
LPNs in a detoxification facility. He said it was an oversight
that they were not included when the regulation was witten. PAs
now sign standing orders for nurses to do their work in clinics,
outpatient clinics, and sonetines hospital settings, so it is a
matter of common sense to include detox services, he said.

2:45: 43 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Finch if his view was that "physician
assistant” should be added in 7 AAC 70.110(b)(4)(D) and (E) to
the list of professions who can supervise a registered nurse or
a licensed practical nurse.

MR. FINCH said it should be added there and other |ocations
where the same | anguage appears throughout the regulation.

2:46: 13 PM

ROBERT R THOWVAS, physician assistant (PA), Anchorage, AK, and
past president of the Al aska Acadeny of Physician Assistants,
spoke in support of anending the regulations to give PAs the
authority to supervise nurses in detoxification facilities. He
said he believes that when the regulations were witten it was a
sinple oversight that PAs were onmitted from this supervisory
role. He explained that PAs work under the supervision of a
col | aborative physician and that physician delegates certain
authority to the PA In every other setting, this includes the
supervi si on of nurses.

2:48:19 PM

ARR COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if he was aware of any other fields
where PAs were not allowed to supervise nurses.

MR. THOVAS sai d no.

2:48: 47 PM
JON SHERWOOD, Medical Assistance Administrator, Departnment of
Heal th and Social Services (DHSS), offered to answer questions.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he would characterize it as an om ssion or
del i berate that physician assistants were not included in 7 AAC
70. 110(b).

MR. SHERWOOD replied he would agree wwth M. Kekl ak's statenent
that DHSS tried to wite the regulations to not conflict wth
the statutes regarding |icensing of physician assistants or the
supervision of registered nurses and licensed practical nurses.
| f DHSS changes the regulations it wants to understand from the
prof essional boards that it reflects the appropriate scope of
practice. There is a very explicit statute that limts who can
supervise LPNs; it lists doctors, nurses, and dentists, but not
physi cian assistants. |If delegation is permtted DHSS wants to
ensure it has clear guidance from the professional boards that
DHSS s regul ation would not conflict with that statute.

CHAI R FRENCH asked for confirmation that he saw the om ssion as
del i ber at e.

MR. SHERWOOD responded that DHSS deliberately tried to wite it
not to overstep its authority. He did not know that the issue of
del egation was explicitly addressed or that the departnent
considered how the regulation would be interpreted. He deferred
further conmment to Ms. Kekl ak.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Keklak to conment on the |ast exchange
and to rem nd himof the exact statute.

MR. SHERWOOD cited the reference as AS 08. 68. 265, Supervision of
Practical Nurses.

2:51:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if PAs testified during the public
portion of the regulation changes, and if they reported what was
happening in the industry.

MR. SHERWOCOD replied he did not have an answer, but it may be
part of the record.

ARR COW TTEE - 15- March 20, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Keklak if she had anything to add to the
exchange.

2:52:32 PM

M5. KEKLAK agreed with M. Sherwood's statenents, and offered to
go through the record and forward any information and comrents
from PAs.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if AS 08.68.265 specifically omts
PAs.

MR. SHERWOOD said AS 08.68.265 says, "A practical nurse shall
work under the supervision of a l|licensed registered nurse, a
i censed physician, or a licensed dentist."

2:54: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if that was specific to behavioral
heal th services or in general

MR. SHERWOOD replied his understanding was that it is a genera
requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK noted the conflict between earlier testinony
and the statute and raised the issue of potential violations.

MR. SHERWOOD cl arified that he was not an expert in professional
licensing and suggested it was a discussion to have with the
Board of Nursing or staff from the Division of Corporations,
Busi ness and Prof essi onal Licensing.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if it was correct to say that there
was not opposition to PAs overseeing nurses; the concern relates
to the way the statutes were witten.

MR. SHERWOOD replied he was not aware of any opposition. He
reiterated that DHSS was sinply trying to wite the regul ations
in a way that did not conflict with any statute relating to the
regul ati on of professional |icensing and professional oversight.

2:56: 37 PM
Proposed Changes in 12 AAC 56. 115 - Pleasure Craft Exenptions

SENATOR WAGONER asked for a little nore di scussion on the mari ne

pilot issue and reiterated that the focus should be boating
safety, not accommpdating a special interest. He expressed

ARR COW TTEE -16- March 20, 2012



reservations about the proposed changes, particularly in |ight
of M. Walen s closing remark:

In closing we see no justification for the proposed
changes |listed above and do not see any corroborating
information provided at the Novenber Board of Marine
Pilots neeting that justifies or supports the changes
to regulation as proposed. At a mninmum the board's
yacht commttee should vet this matter before further
action by the board is considered.

SENATOR WAGONER said he finds it interesting that the board's
yacht conmittee did not neet prior to the proposed regul ation
changes.

2:59: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE OLSON commented that it appeared that conveni ence
was trunping safety on this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK added that he was not sure what was being
fi xed, because it appeared that everything was working well.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI hi ghlighted the Admi nistrative Regulation
Review Conmittee's seemng universal opposition to the
regul ati on changes, and expressed curiosity about the next step.

2:59: 46 PM

CHAI R FRENCH expl ained that the next step is for the I|ieutenant
governor to decide whether to sign the regulation into effect.
If the commttee believes that sonmething needs to be fixed, it
has to be done by statute.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK agreed that the commttee was largely in
uni son about the marine pilot issue, and questioned whether it
wanted to express uniform disapproval of the second matter as
wel | .

SENATOR WAGONER commented that he had experience in teaching
nurses and had no desire to tread those waters again.

3:01: 01 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 3:01 p. m

ARR COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2012



